
Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
March 8, 2011

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, March 8, 2011 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioners Tim Fowler, Dave Stewart, Eber
Warren and Larry Whorton.

MEMBER ABSENT: None

OTHERS PRESENT: County Manager Tim Buck, County Commissioner Kenny Heath, Deputy
Griffm, Mac Rubel, Connie Kinney, Janet Shikoluk, Dot Lord, Sally Covington, Lucille Rice,
Debbie and Durland Evans, Dan and Caroline Collins, Ken and Melanie Campen, Donna Scott,
Sue Walthall, Robert McDonald, Starr Murphy, Carol Home, Phil Hedrick, Paula Hissett, Jean
Creech.

Mayor Potter noted that fourteen people had signed up for Public Comments: twelve regarding
dog issues, one regarding zoning and County Commissioner Ken Heath regarding water. Mayor
Potter stated that if anyone wished to speak they had to be signed up and would be asked to
speak in an orderly manner.

Mayor Potter called the meeting to order by having a moment of silence.

Mayor Potter called for discussion regarding any revision to the proposed agenda.
Commissioner Fowler requested to add Town Clean-up under New Business. Commissioner
Whorton motioned to accept the agenda as amended. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Whorton made a motion to accept the minutes from the February 8, 2011
meeting. All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter then opened the floor for public comment.

The following individuals spoke regarding concerns over town dogs: Dot Lord, Janet Shikoluk,
Connie Kinney, Lucille Rice, Sally Covington, Jean Creech, Debbie Evans, Durland Evans,
Caroline Collins, Dan Collins, Starr Murphy and Sue Walthall. Concerns and issues expressed
were as follow: reference was made to State General Statute 67 which pertains to dangerous
dogs; a feeling that the town is being overrun with dogs and the owners are not being
responsible; animal waste deposits on private property and public streets; concerns were
expressed about specific dogs - i.e. Girlfriend, whose owners live on Phillips Drive, and the
dogs on Country Club Drive; nuisance dogs who are digging up plants and causing property
destruction; out of control dogs and a concern for public safety. The overall concern was that
residents should be able to walk without fear from the dogs and that a change be made in the
Town Ordinance regarding dogs.

1/5



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
March 8, 2011

Commissioner Heath spoke regarding the water pressure improvement project. Commissioner
Heath advised that even with the pipes stopping at the ArapahoelMinnesott Beach boundary line
that with the hydraulics of the project it would still improve Minnesott Beach water pressure to
60 - 65 pounds. Commissioner Heath requested individuals contact him with any questions or
concerns.

Mr. Bob McDonald spoke regarding his concerns about the proposed changes in the zoning
ordinance and inquired as to why some issues were redefined. Mr. McDonald commented that
he wanted to follow up and noted that he saw it was on the agenda for the evening so he would
hold his questions. He was advised that the matter had been referred back to the Planning Board.

Mayor Potter expressed his appreciation to all for their input and advised it was now in the hands
of the Commissioners to handle.

Mayor Potter moved to New Business.

Commissioner Stewart went over the proposed changes to the General Ordinance regarding
animal control and that a public hearing allowing for public input would be held once all the
paper work had been returned. Commissioner Stewart noted that the proposed ordinance
includes dangerous and domestic animals and puts more responsibility on the animal owner.
Commissioner Stewart then read the proposed changes and penalties. Commissioner Stewart
then introduced County Manager Tim Buck to provide information regarding the County
position.

Mr. Buck explained that animal control was originally under the Sheriff's Department (Dept.) but
due to an issue concerning rabies but has moved to the Public Health Dept. and is now under the
County Manager's office. He furthered that their main concerns were rabies and feral animals,
and dangerous dogs. He stated that the County does not have a nuisance type ordinance but
follows the State statutes. Mr. Buck said they do investigate animal cruelty cases with the help
of the Sheriffs office. He explained that due to budgetary constraints the animal control officer
works 8:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m., five days a week and after hours they request the assistance of
the Sheriffs Dept. When asked how a citizen should handle a violation of the State's statutes,
Mr. Buck stated they should call the animal control office and make a report and they would
come out and investigate to determine how to handle that specific case. Mr. Buck furthered that
any citizen having an issue which violates State statute should file a complaint with the
Magistrate's office. Mr. Buck then explained the court procedure regarding dangerous dogs and
owner appeals procedures.

2/5



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
March 8, 2011

Following discussion by residents regarding concern about dangerous dogs, Deputy Griffin
advised that residents should use whatever force necessary to protect themselves and then
contact the Sheriffs office. He noted that the Sheriffs office cannot enforce Town Ordinance
but if the matter falls under a State statute then they can take action and enforce the law.
Commissioner Stewart reiterated the actions that were in process regarding the revisions of the
Town ordinance and noted that enforcement would be up to the residents.

Commissioner Whorton provided a Planning Board update and noted that this pertained to the
changes in the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) that was referred back to the Planning
Board and that member Mac Rubel was present to advise of the status. Mr. Rubel explained that
the Planning Board had been spending the last eight months reviewing the uno to align it with
the vision the Town Commissioners had for Minnesott Beach. Mr. Rubel advised that at the last
Planning Board meeting, March 3, 2011, the comments and concerns that were presented at the
public hearing were discussed. It was felt that some of the items lent themselves to legal
interpretation. Mr. Rubel noted that the Planning Board was reviewing the matter further to
resolve these issues and hoped to have it ready for the next Board of Commissioners meeting
with a recommendation that legal counsel be sought for those areas of legal concern.
Commissioner Whorton recommended that the Planning Board be given additional time to
review and provide recommendations, that possibly within a year, could be submitted to
American Legal for inclusion. Mayor Potter expressed concern that the recommendations were
not all inclusive but only touched upon a small portion of the uno.

Commissioner Fowler spoke regarding the ongoing problems with the Town drainage ditches
and the last time they were looked at was around 1998. Commissioner Fowler proposed that
Avolis Engineering, who has done similar work for River Bend and Fairfield Harbour, be
contracted to look over the drainage system and provide recommendations for repairs and
improvements. He noted this would include, but not limited to, inspection of infrastructure,
flow direction, maintenance needs and improvements, and prioritization of maintenance needs.
It would take about thirty to forty-five days and cost approximately $7,700. Commissioner
Fowler furthered that he had contacted Judy Hills of East Carolina Council. She advised they
have helped communities in the past but there is currently no money. She said they are currently
doing a GIS drainage mapping which cost about $13,000. Commissioner Fowler advised the
Town currently has one of those that was done in about 2000 and lays out the drainage system as
it was then and does not believe there have been any changes since then. Commissioner Fowler
then requested feedback/input from the Board. Commissioner Whorton inquired as to what
problems do we currently have. Commissioner Fowler explained the drainage problems that
were incurred following last years heavy rains and the possible collapse of tiles within the
system. Following some discussion, it was determined that a request would be made of Avolis
Engineering to present further details regarding the project to the Board. Held over until next
meeting.

3/5



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
March 8, 2011

Commissioner Fowler motioned that the Town Clean-up be scheduled for May 12 & 13,2011
and funds in the amount of $1800 be allocated. All Ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter moved to Unfinished Business.

Commissioner Whorton stated that American Legal has gone through the Ordinances and
material that was furnished them and provided some recommendations for consideration which
would be included in the package they would send for review. American Legal will send five
copies but wants only one master copy returned with the Town's recommendations/changes.

Commissioner Fowler restated the issue of paving Country Club Drive and noted that the
consensus from last months meeting was that more information was needed. Commissioner
Fowler noted he had done several things to address the issues from last months meeting. One,
Commissioner Fowler contacted Avolis Engineering requesting an estimate to review all streets
and provide a report regarding assessment of pavement conditions, stressors, advise of road
conditions and prioritize for repairs along with an estimated cost. Commissioner Fowler stated
this would take about thirty day and cost approximately $1815. Two, Commissioner Fowler
advised that he had contacted the Institute of Transportation Research and Education (INTRE)
from NC State which also handled these types of requests but had not heard back from them at
this time. Commissioner Fowler requested authority to contract with Avolis Engineering at a cost
of $1815 or INTRE if the cost was less, to have the assessment conducted for road
improvement/maintenance. Commissioner Whorton expressed concern as to how the paving
critetia would be established and noted the NC Department of Transporation Pavement
Condition Survey Manual 2010 he had obtained. Following further discussion it was determined
that the Board needed to develop standards for the roads and how often the roads were going to
be evaluated for compliance with the standards. When questioned about state engineers doing
the evaluation, Commissioner Fowler stated he contacted Jerry Blackwater with the state who
advised they did not do evaluations and it was the responsibility of the communities.
Commissioner Fowler withdrew his request and it was the consensus that the Board would
establish paving criteria standards at the next meeting. Commissioner Stewart brought up
concern regarding the roads in Arlington Place. Commissioner Whorton advised that Arlington
Place has private roads and are not the responsibility of the Town thus a bond was maintained
until the roads are completed and meet state standards.

Commissioner Reports:

Commissioner Warren advised that tax collection as of January 31, 2011 was at 93% and then
proceeded to go over the budget report noting the following balances for the period ending
February 28, 2011: First Citizens checking account - $13,044.27;
First Citizens savings account - $225,856.57; North Carolina Capital Management Trust -
$200,300.01; First South Bank Savings - $30,003.61; and First South Bank CD - $20,250.00.

4/5



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
March 8, 2011

Commissioner Whorton reported that zoning permit applications have been received and
approved from Boddie Noell for a home on Lot 26 in Arlington Place on February 23, 2011 and
Annie and Reggie St. Germaine for a home on 60 Jeff Road on March 1,2011.

Miscellaneous Information:

Commissioner Whorton advised that there are 122 e-mail addresses signed up for bulk mail on
the web site.

Commissioner Stewart inquired about information from Animal Control regarding rabies shots
being placed on the web and was advised it had already been handled.

Commissioner Whorton made a motion to adjourn. All ayes. Motion passed.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

/1~- //d>'{./{)Z~':t /7=.-{-(/1--/"",--

I .
Cathenne Hurm, Town Manager

5/5


